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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Stibnite Historic District is a collection of historic sites associated with

tungsten and antimony mining that supplied strategic minerals needed for the U.S. and
Allied efforts during World War II. Remotely located in the rugged mountains of
central Idaho, the district's elevation ranges from 6,000 to 8,000 feet at the summits
of adjacent ridges. The central valleys of the district are drained by the East Fork
of the South Fork of the Salmon River and its tributaries.

During World War II, when the district achieved significance, the war-induced
boom in construction produced almost continuous expansion and change. The wartime
rush to get into production led to the expansion and modification of almost every
available building for new uses. This included log and frame buildings constructed
during the 1930s period of mining. Rapid wartime expansion of the mill at Stibnite
(Site 5 ) took place as well as at the Yellow Pine mine (Site 1) two miles to the north.
The mine and mill buildings were primarily balloon frame, constructed with board
and batton siding and galvanized gable or shed style roofs typical of mining buildings
in the West. Eventually supporting a community of 1500 people by the end of 1943,
the company town had five residential districts including Monday Camp (Site3 ),
Midnite Camp, Fiddle Creek, Adkin's Flat and Forest Grove (Site4 ). In addition
to bunkhouses and house tents, over one-hundred simple wood frame houses with clap-
board siding and steep gable roofs were built during this period. Many of the houses
did not have foundations. Forest Grove was the service center for Stibnite during
World War II and its wood frame buildings included a large recreation hall, school,
hospital and service station. The store and post office were located at Stibnite.

The mining process for tungsten and antimony during the War years originated
at the Yellow Pine Mine where the tungsten ore body lay beneath a thick cover of
gravel almost directly below the East Fork. The number one shaft was begun in April
and the first tungsten ore was milled in August, 1941. During 1942 the underground
mine was in intensive production and the overburden above the tungsten was stripped
preparatory to open-pit operation. By May of 1943 the mine was abandoned in favor
of 100 per cent open-pit operations. Before the open pit mining operation could be
started it was necessary to divert the flow of water from the East Fork. The Bailey
tunnel was started in 1942 and completed early in 1943. It diverted water above the
pit approximately 4,000 feet to Sugar Creek. The large open-pit was mined in benches
30 feet high. Churn and wagon drills were used to make holes in which dynamite was
placed to blast down the benches. The broken rock was loaded by power shovels onto
dump trucks and hauled to the milling plant at Stibnite two miles south. A spiral
road with a six per cent grade connected the bottom of the pit to an exit on the
south end. From the ore bin, the ore would be crushed twice and then ground in
ball mills. Through the use of chemicals and air the minerals would be separated
by floatation. At the surface of the floatation cells the minerals were skimmed off
and sent through a process of thickening. A selective floatation process could
produce either tungsten or antimony concentrates. Waste sands or tailings were
carried to a storage area at the south end of the valley. The concentrates were then
hauled by truck over mountain roads to the rail head 80 miles away at Cascade. During
the war years the road was kept open even with the area's harsh and long winters.

The Union Pacific Railroad then shipped the concentrate to manufacturers. Low-grade
tungsten product was shipped to the Metal's Reserve Corporation at Salt Lake City,
Utah, the United States Vanadium Corporation near Bishop, California or to the puri-
fication plant of the Bradley Mining Company at Boise for further refinement.
Stibnite also had an airstrip with flights connecting to Bradley Field in Boise.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE )

The Stibnite Historic District is exceptionally significant to the nation through
its association with the production of strategic minerals needed during World War II.
The mine's production of tungsten and antimony is significant as an example of America's
mobilization for the War. From 1941 to 1945 Stibnite mined and milled more tungsten
and antimony than any other mine in the United States. During this wartime period
Stibnite produced 40 per cent of the nation's domestic supply of tungsten and 90 per
cent of its antimony.

War had broken out in Europe with Hitler's invasion of Poland on September 1, 1939.
Earlier that year the Strategic Mineral Investigations Enabling Act was passed by
Congress enabling the secretaries of War, Navy and Interior to act jointly through the
Army and Navy Munitions Board to determine which materials should be considered stra-
tegic and critical and determine the amounts to be purchased. Both antimony and tung-
sten were listed as strategic materials and defined as those essential to the national
defense and placed under strict conservation and distribution control measures. The
U.S. Bureau of Mines and the U.S. Geological Service immediately set out to develop the
nation's strategic reserves.

The existence of gold-antimony mineralization near the present site of Stibnite
had been known since the Thunder Mountain gold rush in 1900. Albert Hennessy staked
the first claims in the area in 1914. Later, these claims were acquired by J.J.
Oberbillig's United Mercury Mining Company of Boise and in 1927 optioned to the Bradley
Mining Company of San Francisco. The company also had a large interest in Alaska's
Juneau gold mines and the Bunker Hill lead-silver mine in north Idaho. The Bradley
Mining Company started mining and milling gold at Stibnite in the 1930s. Separating
the gold and antimony ores was difficult and gold profits were minimal from these early
years.

During the winter of 1930-40, a Bureau of Mine's drilling program disclosed large
bodies of high-grade antimony under the East Fork valley near Stibnite. In February
1940, examination of the site's drill cores lead to the discovery of tungsten-bearing
sheelite ore by Donald E. White, a geologist of the Federal Geological Survey. Due to
the essential need for both tungsten and antimony the Bradley Mining Company initiated
an all-out effort to mine and mill the minerals. Underground mining was begun at the
Yellow Pine mine in April, 1941 and the first tungsten ore was milled in August, 1941.

All tungsten and antimony ores and concentrates were under complete allocation
and end-use control by the War Production Board. Tungsten is used as a hardener with
other metals to make them withstand extremely high temperatures. It was used during
the War in armor piercing shells, and in the filaments of lamps, radio, radar and
x-ray tubes, as well as for high-speed tools. Antimony is used primarily as a hardening
and strengthening ingredient in lead alloys. Its war uses included bullets, shrapnel,
bearings and storage batteries. It has strong flame-resistant qualities which were used
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Work in the pit went on a 24-hour basis and the mill increased its capacity
from 450 to 800 tons per day by 1944. Electric power in the early war years relied
on several deisel power plants and a hydro-electric power plant. In 1943, the
Idaho Power Company constructed a power line 110 miles to connect Stibnite to a
steady source of hydroelectric energy.

Today, the district still maintains its mining association due to the remains
of the large open pit mine or glory hole (Site 1) and the remains of several mining
structures, foundations, and tailings. Typical of mining activity, once the mining
operation closed in 1955, most of Stibnite's buildings were dismantled or salvaged
for the materials in them. All of Stibnite's houses have either been torn down or
moved to the nearby town of Yellow Pine 14 miles away or to other sites. The
remaining mine and mill building, their usefulness over, have been left to decay.
This natural decay has been accelerated in this region of deep winter snows, sub-
zero temperatures and periods of thaw and frost heaves. The remaining buildings
are primarily in ruins or in partial collapse. Stibnite's wood frame board and
batton buildings were of an architectural style and construction typical of the
wartime period.

INVENTORY:
Smithsonian #

1. SMP-3 Yellow Pine Open Pit Mine. The Glory Hole was excavated during
World War II for tungsten and antimony. The pit was excavated by
blasting benches and hauling the ore up a spiral road. Contributory.

2. Py-412 Olson Cabin. Log cabin built in conjunction with 1930's mining
activity. Provided housing during World War II. Partially collapsed
opening of Bailey Tunnel is located nearby. Contributory.

3. PY-413 Monday Camp Site. Built originally in the 1930s the camp was
expanded during World War II operations. The site housed warehouses,
a generator, shop building and boarding house. Scattered building
remains and foundations are evident. Contributory.

4. PY-420 Forest Grove Site. This area was both a residential neighborhood
and the service center for Stibnite during World War II. Contributory.

5. PY-421 Stibnite - Meadow Creek Site. This was the center of milling opera-
tions during World War II. The site included ore bunkers, the crush-
ing mill and ball mill, dormatories and store. Contributory.

6. PY-422 Mountain Chief Cabin. Log cabin constructed by miners during the

early days of mining activity. Utilized for housing during war years.
Contributory.
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7. Pioneer Metals Processing Facility. Built in 1981 the plant's four

buildings and five leach pads utilize the cyanide heap leach gold
recovery technique. Non-contributory.

The boundaries of the district encompass all mining sites and their environs.
The mine pit, milling plant, and tailing operations, along with the residential
areas, all contribute to the significance of the district. Consideration was given
to a district boundary formed by the elevation of the typography but a polygon
bounded by straight lines was selected as it could conform to the existing boundaries
of patented mining claims.

The district is located on Payette National Forest lands, which include some
less than fee-simple holding under patented mining claims.
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during the War to treat wooden flight decks of aircraft carriers as well as in flame
proofing fabrics.

Stibnite maintained peak production during the War years to provide those essential
minerals needed. From August 1941 to December 1945 Stibnite produced 831,829 WO3
units of tungsten. (A unit of WO3 is 20 pounds of tungsten trioxide.) During the
War years Stibnite produced more tungsten than any other mine in the United States
and was the source of 40 per cent of the domestic output. By the end of 1945 Stibnite's
tungsten ore was exhausted. From 1941 to 1945 Stibnite produced 10,828 tons of
antimony (Sb). Stibnite was the nation's principal domestic producer supplying 90
per cent of the United State's output. The U.S. Bureau of Mine's 1945 Minerals
Yearbook states that the Yellow Pine mine produced more tungsten and antimony than
any other mine in the United States during the War years.

During the War, the company town of Stibnite grew to a population of 1,500.
Stibnite became an incorporated village and was governed by an elected Village Board
of five members. Although there was no union, the Bradley Mining Company was pro-
gressive in its employee relations. On a seniority basis, company houses, with
free utilities, were furnished at a very low cost. Also, medical and hospital care
were available for a modest fee. The Stibnite Mercantile Company was owned by thirty
citizen-employees. At the Forest Grove residential area (Site 4) the company built
a large recreation hall that contained a gym, theaters, bowling alleys, cafe, library,
club rooms and church room. The company also built a school and modern hospital
staffed by a full-time doctor and registered nurses.

With its massive open-pit mine, tailing areas and the various ruins of mining
buildings, the Stibnite Historic District still possesses enough physical integrity
to reflect on the historic significance the mine played in supporting the success
of World War II.
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